
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Lake Administration Committee 

on Friday, 24 January 2020, at 10.00 a.m. 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

Committee Membership 

South Lakeland District Council 

James Airey 
Robin Ashcroft 
Roger Bingham 

Gill Gardner 
Eamonn Hennessy 

John Holmes 
Kevin Holmes 

Vicky Hughes (Vice-Chairman) 
Andrew Jarvis 
Dyan Jones 

Malcolm Lamb 
Eric Morrell 

Doug Rathbone (Chairman) 
Brian Rendell 
Ian Wharton 
Mark Wilson 

 
Lakes Parish Council 

Brian Hewitt Leslie Johnson Philip Thompson 

Windermere Town Council 

Jennifer Borer 

Christine Hallatsch 

Leith Hallatsch 

Peter Hamilton 

Adrian Legge 

 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
Wednesday, 15 January 2020 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Committee Services 

 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 8 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 4 October 2019 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no 
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the 
meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be obtained by 
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been received 

from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 
 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 

members of the public. 

 

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


6  PROGRESS REPORT  9 - 14 

 To consider an update on progress relating to decisions made at previous 
meetings of the Committee, as at 15 January 2020. 
 
Please also see Part II Appendix 2. 

 

7  2020/21 TO 2024/25 DRAFT BUDGET  15 - 22 

 To consider the latest draft budget estimates for Lake Windermere for 2019/20 
to 2023/24. 

 

8  WINDERMERE LAKE WARDENS AND RANGERS ANNUAL REPORT 
2018/19  

23 - 44 

 To consider the Windermere Lake Wardens and Rangers Annual Report 
2018/19. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)  

 

9  PROGRESS REPORT  
 
- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
 

45 - 64 

 To consider an update on progress relating to decisions made at previous 
meetings of the Committee, as at 15 January 2020. 
 
Please also see Part I Report. 

 

10  UPDATE ON COMMERCIAL LEASES AND ANNUAL ENCROACHMENTS  
 
- Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 5 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information)  
- Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 

maintained in legal proceedings.  
 

65 - 76 

 To update Members on commercial leases and annual encroachments.  



This page is intentionally left blank



5 
04.10.2019 Lake Administration Committee 
 

 

LAKE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Lake Administration Committee held in the 
Marchesi Centre, Holly Road, Windermere, LA23 2AF, on Friday, 4 October 2019, at 
10.00 a.m. 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Doug Rathbone (Chairman) 
  
 

James Airey 
Roger Bingham 

 

Gill Gardner 
Eamonn Hennessy 

 

Kevin Holmes 
Ian Wharton 

 
Representing Lakes Parish Council 

 
Leslie Johnson 

 
Philip Thompson 

 
  

 
Representing Windermere Town Council 

 
Jennifer Borer 

Christine Hallatsch 
 

Leith Hallatsch 
Peter Hamilton 

 

Adrian Legge 
 

Apologies for absence were received from District Councillors Robin Ashcroft, 
John Holmes, Vicky Hughes (Vice-Chairman), Andrew Jarvis, Dyan Jones, 
Malcolm Lamb, Eric Morrell, Brian Rendell and Mark Wilson and Lakes Parish Councillor 
Brian Hewitt. 
 

Officers 
 

Inge Booth Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Frankie Flannigan Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer 

Julia Krier Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Adam Moffatt Case Management Officer 

Simon Rowley Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Josie Smith Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Polly Straker Locality Team Leader 

Sion Thomas Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services 

 
Also in attendance at the meeting was Richard Platt from Lambert Smith Hampton. 
 

LA/15 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) explained that 
the District Council Constitution stated that the quorum of a meeting of the Lake 
Administration Committee would be one quarter of the whole membership of that 
Committee comprising Council Members and Co-opted Members and that, according to the 
Council’s Constitution, of those persons present, the Members of the Council should be in 
the majority. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



6 
04.10.2019 Lake Administration Committee 
 

 

There were currently seven District Council Members and seven Co-optees present.  The 
Legal, Governance and Democracy Leader Specialist (Monitoring Officer), therefore, 
suggested that should one Co-optee be willing to leave the meeting, then the meeting could 
continue.  She presented the alternative option for the meeting to be postponed. 
 
Following a brief discussion, Windermere Town Councillor Adrian Legge volunteered to 
withdraw from the meeting. 
 
Concern was expressed by District, Town and Parish Councillors with regard to the poor 
attendance at the meeting and Members of the Committee wished to ensure that their 
disappointment was conveyed. 
 
The Chairman thanked Councillor Legge and sought to ensure that his presence at the 
commencement of the meeting be recorded.  He also assured the Committee that 
representation would be made to those District Councillors who were not in attendance at 
the meeting to explain the impact of non-attendance.  Furthermore, he suggested that this 
aspect of the Constitution might be re-examined. 
 
Note – Windermere Town Councillor Adrian Legge left the room for the remainder of 
the meeting. 
 

LA/16 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of 
the meeting of the Committee held on 5 July 2019. 
 

LA/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LA/18 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion of 
the press and public. 
 

LA/19 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
have been received in respect of this meeting. 
 

LA/20 PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services provided a verbal update on 
progress being made on decisions taken at previous meetings of the Committee.  He 
informed Members that the Windermere Lake Action Plan Steering Group would be 
meeting in December. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

LA/21 LAKE WINDERMERE FEES AND CHARGES 2020/21  
 
The Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services presented a report including 
proposals for Fees and Charges relating to Windermere Lake and the Lake Wardens 
Services for the 2020/21 financial year.  

Page 6



7 
04.10.2019 Lake Administration Committee 
 

 

 
The fees covered six distinct areas, namely:- 
 

 permanent and holiday moorings; 

 yearly renewed encroachments (the commercial term leases were outside the scope of 
the Fees and Charges); 

 ancillary services (including slipway, training, dinghy and winter storage); 

 marina berths; 

 license fees; and 

 legal fees. 
 
The proposals sought to limit the increase in fees and charges whilst sustaining the Lake 
Income, and met the Medium Term Financial Plan requirements of a 2% rise where 
practicable. 
 
Discussion took place with regard to legal fees and the Legal, Governance and Democracy 
Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) explained in detail the type of work carried out by the 
Legal Team in this regard. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Fees and Charges, as set out in both Appendix 1 and 2 to the 
report, be approved. 

 

LA/22 ENCROACHMENT APPLICATION TO INSTALL A NEW WOODEN JETTY AT LOUPER 
WEIR WINDERMERE  
 
The Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer presented a report outlining a retrospective 
encroachment application to install a new wooden jetty at Louper Weir Windermere. The 
application provided details of the construction of the new jetty of a traditional wooden 
construction with wooden piles measuring 26.2m². The report indicated that a meeting had 
been held with the applicant, who had been unaware that the jetty had been installed due to 
a break down in communications with the sub-contractors. The report highlighted that the 
application had had full planning consent by the Lake District National Park Authority and 
the Environment Agency. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) informed 
Members that the report written by the Officer had been based on the merits of the 
application and had not made a recommendation, due to the application being made 
retrospectively. In addition, she reiterated Members’ comments that the application should 
be viewed afresh, ignoring the fact that the application had been made in retrospect.  
 
Members expressed concern at the retrospective nature of the application and it was felt 
that a letter should be sent to the applicant expressing the Committee’s disappointment.  In 
addition, it was raised that the consultation process with regard to planning applications 
relating to encroachments might be re-examined. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the Director of Customer and Commercial Services be delegated authority to grant 
permission, subject to the completion of a revised private encroachment agreement for the 
installation of a new wooden jetty at Louper Weir, Windermere; and 
 
(2) a letter be sent to the applicant, expressing the Committee’s disappointment with 
regard to the retrospective application. 
 

Page 7



8 
04.10.2019 Lake Administration Committee 
 

 

LA/23 ENCROACHMENT APPLICATION TO INSTALL TWO NEW WOODEN JETTIES AT THE 
LAKE DISTRICT BOAT CLUB WINDERMERE  
 
The Principal Lake and Parking Services Officer presented a report outlining an 
encroachment application at the Lake District Boat Club, Windermere. The application 
sought to install two new wooden jetties at the Lake District Boat Club and remove the three 
old wooden jetties. The dimensions for the proposed northern jetty were 45.24m² and the 
southern jetty, 40.43m²; both jetties were to be located close to the original jetty locations. 
The report highlighted support from both the Lake District National Park Authority and the 
Environment Agency. 
 
Members felt that the application presented an opportunity for improved use of space. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Director of Customer and Commercial Services be delegated 
authority to grant permission, subject to the completion of a revised commercial 
encroachment agreement for the following at the Lake District Boat Club, Windermere:- 
 
(1) removal of three old wooden jetties; and 
 
(2) installation of two new wooden jetties. 
 

LA/24 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraphs indicated. 
 

LA/25 UPDATE ON COMMERCIAL LEASES AND ANNUAL ENCROACHMENTS 
 
- Paragraph 1,2,3,5 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 

the authority holding that information)  
- Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 

maintained in legal proceedings.  
 
Lengthy consideration was given to a report presented by the Legal, Governance and 
Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer), which provided Members with an update 
regarding commercial leases and annual encroachments around the Lake. 
 
Members welcomed this positive report. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

LA/26 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 11.02 a.m. 

Page 8



LAKE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

PROGRESS REPORT: as at 24 January 2020 

Minute 
no. 

Report Title Committee 
Date 

Progress Due date Officer 
 

LA/21 Windermere 
Lake Action 
Plan 2017-
2022 

6 October 
2017 

 The Windermere Lake Action Plan Steering Group 

met on 17 December 2019.   The minutes of the 

meeting and supporting documents can be found at 

Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 to the Progress Report. 

Appendix 2 contains Part II information. 

In accordance with Section 100B(2) of the Local 

Government Act 1972, copies of the Part II report 

are excluded from inspection by members of the 

public as the report contains information as 

described in Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended 

by the Local Government (Access to Information) 

(Variation) Order 2006, as follows:- 

- Information relating to the financial or business 

affairs of any particular person (including the 

authority holding that information).  (Paragraph 3) 

Ongoing Sion 
Thomas 
 
 

 

P
age 9

Item
 N

o.6



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 10



WINDERMERE LAKE ACTION PLAN 2017- 2022 Steering Group 
Tuesday 17 December 2019, 11:00 – 13:00hrs 

Murley Moss, Kendal, LA9 7RL 
 

MINUTES 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP  
Steve Gaskell – LDNPA 
Mark Eccles - LDNPA 
Sion Thomas – SLDC 
Simon Rowley – SLDC 
Cllr Holmes – SLDC 
Cllr Gardener – SLDC 
Cllr Johnson – LPC 
Cllr Borer – WTC 
Mark Kidd – LDNPA Member 
Louise Waterhouse – LDNPA Member 
  
 
1 Apologies 

 
Apologies received from Simon Rowley (SLDC Officer), Mark Eccles 
(LDNPA Officer), Cllr Johnson (LPC) and Cllr Gardener (SLDC).  
 

2 Introductions  
 

Agreement between members that Sion Thomas (SLDC Officer) would 
chair the meetings for the next 12 months. It was felt that it was better for 
this meeting to be chaired by the officers who were also part of the Delivery 
Group.   

 
3 Refresher on the WLAP and how it came about. 
 

Steve Gaskell (LDNPA) gave an overview of how the Windermere Lake 
Action Group came about and when it was formed.  
 
The Action Plan sets out the key new actions to be undertaken to secure 
and improve the environment of Windermere Lake and the land 
immediately around its shores and improve the community and economic 
benefits these provide. The plan covers 2017- 2022, building on the 
achievements from the previous two five year strategies. 

 
 

This plan is focused on delivering joint action across organisations, 
businesses and communities to deliver our shared vision for Windermere. 
Therefore the plan starts with the actions, which have been developed 
through joint working across sectors. We call these Breakthrough Actions 
because the community representatives, businesses and organisations 
that know the lake consider these are the priority actions needed for the 
next five years to tackle issues not currently being addressed through the 
work of others.   

Appendix 1 

Page 11



 
 

4 The Steering Group and the Delivery Group Purposes. 
 

Sion Thomas gave a briefing to all members of the Steering Group and 
Delivery Group purpose.  
 
The Purpose of the Steering Group is: 

 To drive and oversee the delivery and review of the Windermere Lake 

Action Plan 

 To receive progress reports from the Delivery Group 

 To consider and agree amendments to the Plan in light of delivery and 

circumstantial changes.  

 To enable community accountability for the Plan’s delivery and 

achievement. 

 To make recommendations to the appropriate decision making 

committee in the Authorities where relevant. 

A Delivery Group has been developed whose purpose is to: 

 Drive and oversee delivery of the plan’s actions 

 Monitor delivery and recommend any revision to the Plan 

 Plan and manage delivery of each of the actions 

 Enable stakeholders and other key delivery partnerships to input 

 
 

5 Updates on the Key Actions  
 
Sion Thomas (SLDC) and Steve Gaskell (LDNPA) gave an update to 
Steering Group members on the various key action points as noted within 
the Windermere Lake Action Plan.  
 
See Notes BA1, B2, BA3, BA4 & BA6 for individual project updates.  

 
  

6 Outline timetable for future steering and delivery group meetings  
 
It was agreed that Delivery Group meetings would take place every 3 
months. Written update to be given to Steering Group following Delivery 
Group where Delivery Group meeting is not followed by Steering Group 
meeting.  
 
Steering Group meeting to be held every 6 months. Meetings to be called 
if Delivery Group feel that special update is required on key projects.  
 
Steve Gaskell confirmed that for the next Steering Group meeting, that 
individual officers leading on the projects would be asked to attend the 
meetings and present the projects to help members understand the 
projects, their complexities and to give them a greater understanding 
moving forward with the Steering group meetings 
 

7 Feedback on meeting (5mins) 

Page 12



 

Meeting proved useful. All members agreed that Key Action update BA5 to 
be put on hold at this time as the scale of the project was such that 
officers from SLDC and LDNPA unable to progress a scheme of this 
scale. The EA had confirmed that they had no capacity at this time to take 
this project forward. All members agreed that priority to be given to the 
other Breakthrough Action Points.  
 
It was also agreed that the Lake Windermere Breakthrough Action Plan 
would be updated in the next Delivery Group meeting with additional 
column on any revised timescales to be agreed by the Steering Group.  
 

8 Date of next meeting 
 

Meeting to be held in June 2020, exact date and time to be confirmed at a 
later date.  

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



South Lakeland District Council 

Lake Administration Committee 

Friday, 24 January 2020 

2020/21 to 2024/25 Draft Budget 

 

Portfolio:   Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Section 151 Officer 

Report Author: Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

Wards:  Ambleside & Grasmere; Bowness & Levens; Windermere; 

Forward Plan: Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan 
as published on 1 October 2019 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 It is expected that the budgets for Lake Windermere will be approved by full Council 
on 25 February 2020, as part of the overall 2020/21 to 2024/25 Budget. This report 
gives Licensing Committee the opportunity to consider the funding available to 
deliver their services. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Lake Administration Committee note the latest draft 
estimates. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Lake Administration Committee reviewed fees and charges relating to Windermere 
Lake and the Lake Wardens from 1 April 2020 on for 2020/21 onwards based on the 
Medium Term Financial Plan on 4th October 2019.  

3.2  The latest draft revenue budgets for 2020/21 to 2024/25 are attached at Appendix 1. 
These will form part of the overall Draft Revenue Budget due to be presented to 
Council for consideration and approval on the 25 February 2020. 

3.3  The Draft Budget Report considered by Cabinet on the 20th December 2019 showed 
a balanced position corporately for 2020/21. The detailed budget relating to Lake 
Windermere, presented in Appendix 1, largely represents no change in the level of 
service provision from 2019/20. The estimates have changed year on year, including: 

 Incremental progression on salary costs and the pay award; 

 Unavoidable inflation on costs (e.g. premises costs); 

 Review of base expenditure for cost reductions; 

 Income from fees and charges in line with the fees agreed on 4 November 
2019. 

3.4 There is one budget pressure relating to this Committee of £50,000 for dredging to 
improve the operation of Ferry Nab and to maximise use of the marina.   

Page 15

Item No.7



3.5 As part of the Customer Connect programme there has been a fundamental 
restructuring of the Council’s staffing.  Costs to services are based on internal 
recharges which reflect staff time on individual services.  Prior to Customer Connect 
there have been regular exercises to record staff time spend on functions which has 
formed the basis of the recharge calculation.  From January 2020 the new structure 
of customer services, case management, specialists and the delivery team has been 
introduced.  Because this structure is so different to the previous structure it will not 
be possible to calculate recharges with any degree of accuracy.  It is planned to 
calculate recharges in autumn 2020 when the new operating model has been in 
place for six months and there is sufficient transaction and activity data to make 
accurate allocations of time and therefore cost.  In the meantime the draft budgets in 
Appendix 1 exclude recharges for the current and future years. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The Draft Budget has been considered by Cabinet on 20 December 2019. It will also 

be considered by the Licensing Committees and Planning Committees will receive 
and consider the elements of the draft Budget Report which are relevant to them. The 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be asked to consider the 20 December 
Cabinet first draft Budget Report at its January 2019 meeting.  

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 This overall Draft Budget presents options in relation to potential budget pressures 
and savings, new capital programme bids, one off revenue growth bids and fees and 
charges. The proposals together aim to meet the Council’s statutory duty to set a 
balanced Budget for 2019/20. No alternative options are proposed in this report. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 This report sets out the draft Budget to enable the consideration of how the Council’s 
priorities will be delivered. Setting a sound framework for budget preparation assists 
in the delivery of all corporate outcomes. This strategy has been developed within the 
context of the MTFP. 

6.2 Economy and Culture - encouraging a sustainable environment and inclusive 
economy, we will grow a green economy by making the best use of our parks, open 
spaces and lakes. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1  The draft Budget aims to safeguard the Council’s financial position and ensure a 
balanced budget for 2019/20 and an improved position in the years that follow. 

7.2  Lake Administration Committee considered fees and charges and initial draft budget 
proposals at their meeting of 4 October 2019. The proposed fees reflected service 
demand, the need for public protection and statutory requirements. 

Human Resources 

7.2 This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council; individual savings and 
growth proposals may have direct staffing implications. 

Legal 

7.3.1 This report has no direct legal implications at this stage but individual proposals 
resulting from this report may have direct legal implications. 

7.3.2  Legal input will be required to prepare any licences, encroachment agreements as 
well as to deal with any challenges to the Encroachment areas and fee increases. 

Page 16



Costs may be required to cover any legal action we decide to take. Our fees and 
charges are set by the Council. 

 
7.3.3  Furthermore, legal input may be necessary to respond to any issues that might 

impact upon the effective operation of the service and the level of fees that can be 
charged. 

 
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.5 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

7.6 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2020/21 which will be subject 
to further consultation. Specific issues that require HSEEIAs will be addressed within 
the final budget proposals presented to Council 25 February 2020. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No   

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2020/21 which will be subject 
to further consultation. Specific issues that require EIAs will be addressed within the 
final budget proposals presented to Council 25 February 2020.  

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Failure to create a balanced and 
sustainable budget by February 
2020 

Includes: inability to deliver 
corporate priorities, 
inappropriate spending, 
and inappropriate 
reductions in services.  

Identification of sound 
budget guidelines in an 
agreed strategy reduces 
the risk of an unaffordable 
budget and/or precipitate 
budget reductions.  
Monitoring of progress 
against the budget 
timetable reduces the 
need for last-minute 
budget adjustments.  

Revenue budget and Capital 
Programme may not be 
integrated and aligned with 
Council Plan.  

Resources not directed to 
achieving corporate 
outcomes, leading to 
inappropriate spending.  

Both the revenue budget 
and the Capital 
Programme are now 
embedded in the 
corporate planning cycle. 
All revenue budgets and 
capital programme 
schemes are linked to 
Council plan priorities  

Failure to set appropriate fees 
and charges  

Reduced income for work 
undertaken and insufficient 
income to cover the cost of 
operating the Lake 
Windermere service.  
Potential legal challenge, 
increased costs and 
reputational damage.  

Bring current fees in line 
with MTFP while ensuring 
they meet statutory 
requirements.  

Page 17



Risk Consequence Controls required 

That fees are increased beyond 
a level that the majority of users 
find acceptable and user levels 
fall. 
 

Reduced income and 
increased pressure to 
raise fees further within a 
diminishing market. 
 

Keep fees affordable and 
realistic in order to retain 
existing clients and secure 
new customers by 
providing an efficient well 
managed service. 

That fees are not increased in 
line with inflation 

Overall reduction in 
income when compared 
with inflation. 
 

Keep fees affordable and 
realistic in order to retain 
existing clients and secure 
new customers by 
providing an efficient well 
managed service. 

Contact Officers    

Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer), 01539 793147, 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Draft Budgets 2020/21 – 2024/25 

2 Revenue Budget Pressures 2020/21 – 2024/25 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Medium Term Financial Plan 
approved Council 23 July 2019 

https://tinyurl.com/y35xefgw 

Lake Windermere Fees and 
Charges 2020/21 

https://tinyurl.com/t9xwbef 

2020/21 to 2024/25 Draft Budget, 
Cabinet 20 December 2020 

https://tinyurl.com/yjtszdmc 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer N/A 

Monitoring Officer N/A 

CMT N/A 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 18

https://tinyurl.com/y35xefgw
https://tinyurl.com/t9xwbef
https://tinyurl.com/yjtszdmc


Draft Budgets - Lake Administration Committee Appendix 1

2019/20
Approved

£000

2019/20
Current

£000

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

Service: GLW

Portfolio: Economy, Culture and Leisure
Department: Operational Lead Customer and Locality Services

Direct Expenditure
229.1 248.3 Employees 229.0 234.0 239.1 244.4 249.8

99.8 110.9 Premises 137.6 89.7 92.4 94.2 97.6
21.6 14.3 Transport 14.2 14.3 14.4 14.6 15.3
22.6 26.4 Supplies and Services 24.3 24.6 24.8 25.0 27.0

0.6 0.6 Third Party Payments 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6
328.0 0.0 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

701.7 400.5 405.7 363.2 371.3 378.8 390.3
Income

-1,459.5 -1,459.5 Customer Receipts -1,492.6 -1,518.6 -1,544.2 -1,572.0 -1,600.3
-6.2 -6.2 Recharges and Transfers -6.2 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2

-1,465.7 -1,465.7 -1,498.8 -1,524.8 -1,550.4 -1,578.2 -1,606.5
Capital Charges

93.5 85.5 Capital Financing Costs 89.7 89.7 4.7 18.0 423.5

93.5 85.5 89.7 89.7 4.7 18.0 423.5

-670.5 -979.7 Net Expenditure -1,003.4 -1,071.9 -1,174.4 -1,181.4 -792.7

Lake Windermere

Warden Service of Lake Windermere.  Management of Moorings and Encroachments.  Provision of Slipway and General Lake Service 
(Rescues etc.)

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Appendix 2
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the revenue budget pressures from 2020/21 onwards
Revenue Pressures - Unavoidable

Scheme Portfolio Ops Manager Description 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Planning Advertising 
Budget

Housing and 
Innovation

Gareth Candlin To meet increased statutory requirements on the public 
advertisement of planning applications

17.5 17.5 17.5 17.5 17.5 

Projected car parking income is lower than currently 
budgeted 

160.0 160.0 160.0 160.0 160.0 

Partially offset by an increase in permit fees to give a 
better balance between daily parking fees and annual 
fees

(10.0) (10.0) (10.0) (10.0) (10.0)

Sale of Recyclable Materials Finance and 
Resources

Sion Thomas Due to global market conditions we are not receiving the 
same level of income for recyclable materials as in the 
past.

110.0 110.0 110.0 110.0 110.0 

Langstone House Finance and 
Resources

Sion Thomas Revenue budget previously removed from Langstone 
House budget code as expectation was for Langstone 
House to be sold. Currently WTC still occupy the site and 
therefore costs such as services and rates still payable.

13.0 13.0 13.0 0.0 0.0 

46.3 48.7 51.6 52.4 54.0 

(25.0) (25.0) (25.0) (25.0) (25.0)
Level 2 Case Manager for 
Legal Governance and 
Democracy

Customer and 
Commercial 
Services and 
People

Linda Fisher / 
Simon McVey

The Legal Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
will keep an overview of the work taking place in the work 
programme and attend the O and S Committee.

26.9 28.0 29.2 30.4 31.0 

Reduce vacancy allowance 
from rota-ed services

Finance and 
Resources

Helen Smith e.g. waste collection, hostel, WMSCCP attendants.  
These services need a certain level of staffing - where 
staff are absent then additional resources are required so 
there is no overall saving on vacancies  reduce vacany 
savings to 2% rather than 4% and monitor delivery during 
2020/21

91.5 95.0 98.5 101.0 103.0 

Commercial Project Team Customer and 
Commercial 
Services and 
People

Linda fisher / 
Gareth Candlin

The Council has an ambitious future work programme 
and needs to ensure that its Economic Development, 
Planning Policy, Planning, Legal and Procurement 
resource is adequately equipped to deal with its 
commitments and also needs to future proof our systems 
and processes. 

153.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Finance and 
Resources

Sion ThomasParking Income

Specialist Legal 
Governance and Democracy

There has been a significant upturn in the work for the 
legal services team due to the significant ambitions within 
the council plan and this extra resource will ensure all 
aspects of this area of work can be delivered to the 
highest expected standards.

Customer and 
Commercial 
Services and 

People

Linda Fisher

P
age 21



Scheme Portfolio Ops Manager Description 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Fixed Term Enforcement 
Officer

Housing and 
Innovation

Gareth Candlin To reduce outstanding case load in anticipation of new 
working practices and outcomes following the Customer 
Connect model and locality working

34.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Dredging Ferry Nab Marina Finance and 
Resources

Sion Thomas Dredging to improve operation of Ferry Nab and to 
maximise use of the marina. Use of central area is 
dependant on water levels. Each Summer there are 
concerns expressed by users over the water levels and 
the impact on berth holders and day visitors and therefore 
income. 

50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

667.7 437.2 444.8 436.3 440.6

2,035.8

P
age 22



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Lake Administration Committee 

Friday, 24 January 2020 

Windermere Lake Wardens and Rangers Annual 
Report 2018/19 

 

Chairman:   Cllr Doug Rathbone – Chairman of Lake Administration Committee 

Report from:  Simon Rowley – Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Frankie Flannigan – Service Delivery Manager 

                                   Steve Gaskell – Park Management Leader (LDNPA) 

Wards:  No Applicable 

Forward Plan: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 Members note the achievements and outcomes as detailed in the Windermere Lake 
Warden and Lake Ranger Annual report covering the joint operational activities from 
1st October 2018 to 30th September 2019. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that members note the contents of the report  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Annual report covers our joint 
operational activities from 1st October 2018 to 30th September 2019. It is intended to 
inform members, stakeholders, lake users and officers of the range of services 
delivered and the achievements undertaken, and to provide an illustration of how and 
who has used the lake during the period this report covers. 

3.2      The report is structured into the topics used in the Lake District National Park 
Partnership Plan and Vision for the Lake District; a prosperous economy, world class 
visitor experience, vibrant communities and spectacular landscape 

 

4.0 Consultation. 

4.1 This report is co-authored with the Lake District National Park (LDNPA) who have 
provided information text and illustrations for the report. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 None 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 This report supports the Councils vision to make South Lakeland the best place to 
live, work and explore. 

Page 23

Item No.8



7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 None 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no staff implications 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
Annual Report 

7.6 Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: Not Applicable 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
Annual Report 

7.9 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: Not Applicable 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Failure to monitor lake activities 
may result in missed 
opportunities and identifying 
downward trends 

Fail to identify appropriate 
actions which may result in 
income loss and 
operational efficiency  

Report annually and 
identify risks to ensure 
appropriate actions are 
taken 

Contact Officers 

Report Author – Frankie Flannigan, Service Delivery Manager, Phone 01539 796165 
f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Annual Report 2018/19 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 02/01/2020 

Section 151 Officer 02/01/2020 

Monitoring Officer  N/A 

Page 24



Signed off by Date sent 

CMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 02/01/2020 

Human Resources Lead Specialist  N/A 

Communications Team 02/01/2020 

Leader  N/A 

Committee Chairman  N/A 

Portfolio Holder  N/A 

Ward Councillor(s)  N/A 

Committee  N/A 

Executive (Cabinet)  N/A 

Council  N/A 

 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



  
 

 
 

 

 

  

Annual Report    1  October 2018- 30 September 2019 

Windermere 

Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 2018 - 2019 

Appendix 1 

Page 27

http://sharepoint/


 

2 | P a g e  
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

Contents 
1. Introduction ............................................................................................................ 3 

2. The Lake Wardens and the Lake Ranger Teams ................................................... 3 

2.1 The Lake Wardens ............................................................................................. 3 

2.2 The Lake Rangers .............................................................................................. 4 

3. A prosperous economy .......................................................................................... 5 

3.1 Lake usage ......................................................................................................... 5 

3.2 Boat registrations ............................................................................................... 5 

3.3 Moorings ............................................................................................................ 6 

3.4 Slipway ............................................................................................................... 7 

3.5 Winter storage .................................................................................................... 7 

3.6 Tender Storage .................................................................................................. 7 

3.7 Jetty Storage ...................................................................................................... 7 

4. World Class Visitor Experiences ............................................................................ 8 

4.1 Promotion of services ......................................................................................... 8 

4.2 Education and formal training courses ................................................................ 8 

4.3 Events on Windermere ..................................................................................... 10 

4.4 Windermere Boat Show .................................................................................... 11 

5. Vibrant Communities ............................................................................................ 13 

5.1 Windermere byelaw exemption applications ..................................................... 13 

5.2 Incidents on the lake ........................................................................................ 13 

5.3 Byelaw incidents ............................................................................................... 15 

6. Spectacular Landscape, Wildlife and Cultural Heritage ........................................ 15 

6.1 Water quality and bathing waters ..................................................................... 16 

6.2 Geese management ......................................................................................... 17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

   

Page 28



 

3 
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

1. Introduction  
 

Welcome to the annual report of the Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger 

Services. This report covers our activities from 1st October 2018 to 30th 

September 2019.  

It is intended to inform partners, stakeholders and those with responsibility for 

managing the lake. It also provides an insight into who has used the lake during 

the period this report covers. 

Information provided in this report reflect the strategies identified in the Lake 

District National Park Authority (LDNPA) partnership plan for 2015 to 2020 which 

is described in four sections; 

 A prosperous economy 

 World class visitor experiences 

 Vibrant communities 

 Spectacular landscapes, wildlife and cultural heritage 
 

 

 

2. The Lake Wardens and the Lake Ranger Teams  
 

The Wardens and Rangers have continued to work together successfully from the 

joint base at Ferry Nab, which has shared office space. Each team has their own 

boats but are trained to use each other’s. First aid kits and defibrillators’ are 

shared between the teams along with information to mutually support operational 

delivery. Joint team briefings have also been held during the reporting period, to 

help support effective communications.  

 

2.1 The Lake Wardens   

 

South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) provide a Lake Warden service on the lake which 

includes; a patrol and rescue service, manage lake moorings and public jetties, provide 

boat winter storage and other customer and boat services at the Ferry Nab office. All 

wardens are trained in first aid and provide Royal Yachting Association powerboat 

training for other agencies. Water safety training is also provided for schools and other 

organisations.  

The wardens also inspect and maintain eight public jetties around the lake. During this 

reporting period, a newly refurbished public jetty was completed at Waterhead. Rock 

marker and navigation buoys on the lake are also checked weekly whilst other navigation 

aids are provided and maintained by the warden service. Additionally, an important role 

is to monitor lake encroachment and dredging applications and provide support to 

council’s legal and property services. 

Page 29



 

4 | P a g e  
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 

A lake warden inspecting one of the public jetties 

 

2.2 The Lake Rangers 

 

The Lake Rangers are deployed to meet the levels of lake use and associated activities, 

with extra staff in place during the seasonal months. The team had one change at the 

start of the season when one of the seasonal rangers left. This vacancy was quickly re-

filled to ensure the Ranger team was effectively supported through the summer.  

 

The Rangers are also well supported by a dedicated team of National Park Volunteers 

who assist with various duties including; advice provided to the public face to face, 

meeting people on the lake, assisting with education on lake safety or as a last resort 

through enforcement.  

 

As part of the team’s ongoing boat and equipment replacement regime, two of the petrol 

engines on the Lake Patrol Boats have been replaced with LPG engines. This has 

resulted in carbon monoxide and NOX efficiency, reduced running costs and has helped 

to reduce the health and safety risks to the staff.  

 

Page 30



 

5 
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 
A lake ranger on patrol 

 

 

3. A prosperous economy 

The Lake District’s economy is centred on the community it serves and the 

spectacular landscapes which have been preserved by land managers. It is also 

supported by a strong visitor economy attracted by the environment and lifestyle 

it offers. Lake Windermere forms one of these assets and the economic output 

from the activities in and around the lake contribute to both the local and visitor 

economies. 

3.1 Lake usage   

Lake usage has been measured using the following sources of data: 

 Boat registrations 

 Moorings 

 Slipway 

 Winter storage 

 Tender storage 

 

 

 

3.2 Boat registrations  

All power driven vessels used on the Lake Windermere must be registered with the Lake 
District National Park (LDNPA).  

Table 3.2a below shows the total number of registered power driven boats over the past 
five years. This shows a 13% decrease in the number of new power driven boats being 
registered for 2018-19. 

Page 31



 

6 | P a g e  
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

The total number of renewals has remained consistent in the five year period from 2015 
up to 2019. The difference proportionally between new registrations and renewals has 
remained within a 3% variance. 
 

Table 3.2a Boat Registrations  

 

 

Power driven boat 

registrations 

 

October 

2018 

September 

2019 

 

October 

2017 

September 

2018 

 

October 

2016 

September 

2017 

 

 

October 

2016 

September 

2017 

 

October 

2015 

September 

2016 

New registrations 

 

641 

 

 

735  

 

772  

 

772  744  

Renewals 
 

2,851  

 

2,852  

 

2,805  

 

2,805  
 

2,780  

 

Totals 

 

3,492 

 

3,578 

 

3,577 

 

3,577 

 

3,524 

 

 

3.3 Moorings 

There are now a total of 764 mooring sites on the Lake for which SLDC have planning 

consent and are available to lease. The number of sites has reduced over time due to 

access difficulties from the lake shore. There is a plan in development to use some of 

these mooring sites as temporary stopping points for boats, thereby increasing income 

on unused mooring areas.  

Currently there are 675 mooring sites (88%) leased during the reporting year to date; a 

6% decrease on last year.  

Table 3.3a - Breakdown of the mooring usage by fee type since October 2015; 

 

Fee 
type 

Description Oct 2018 

Sept 2019 

Oct 2017 

Sept 2018 

Oct 2016 

Sept 2017 

Oct 2016 

Sept 2017 
Oct 2015 

Sept 2016 

 

A 

 

Open deck yacht 

 

32 

 

34 

 

34 

 

34 

 

32 

 

B 

Retained moorings - 

no boat attached 

 

 

50 

 

 

 

52 

 

 

49 

 

 

 

49 

 

 

50 

C Craft -  up to 11m 543 562 581 581 576 

D Commercial mooring 

 

6 

 

 

6 

 

6 

 

6 19 

E No fee - unused 42 46 46 46 49 

Page 32



 

7 
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

S Service moorings 

 

2 

 

 

2 

 

2 

 

2 7 

Total 675 718 702 733 718 

 

 

3.4 Slipway  

In total there were 869 powered crafts launched on the public slipway this year; this is a 

reduction of 10% than in the last reporting period. This may be as a result of more 

inclement weather than the last reporting period. This does not include use of the slipway 

by permanent mooring and berth holders as they receive free use of the slipway. Non-

powered vessels such as canoes and dinghies also receive free use of the slipway and 

are not included in the figures as there is no accountable transaction. 

Table 3.4a Slipway usage 

Slipway usage Craft numbers 

1st October 2018 to 30th September 2019 862 

1st October 2017 to 30th September 2018 950 

1st October 2016 to 30th September 2017 815 

1st October 2015 to 30th September 2016 859 

1st October 2014 to 30th September 2015 691 

 

 

3.5 Winter storage    

There is capacity for 155 boats from 5m to 11.5m to be stored at Ferry Nab over winter. 

During the winter of 2018/19 153 boats were stored in three locations; main car park, 

overspill car park and Braithwaite fold overspill. Boats are stored from mid-October until 

the end of March. 

 

3.6 Tender Storage 

Currently there are 196 tenders being stored at Ferry Nab; 154 in the dinghy racks, 37 

in the trailer park and 5 on jetty berths. There is one customer on the waiting list for the 

dinghy racks, with no one on the waiting list for the dingy park. The plans to extend the 

dinghy racks are still in development.  

3.7 Jetty Storage 

There are 26 jetty berths at Ferry Nab marina, with 10 suitable for vessels up to 14 metres 

in length overall. The rest are suitable for vessels up to 13 metres in length. At the end 

of this reporting period 3 jetty berths were vacant and available to lease.  

 

 

Page 33



 

8 | P a g e  
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 

4. World Class Visitor Experiences  

 
A world class visitor experience provides high quality and unique experiences 

for visitors within a stunning and globally significant World Heritage Site. We 

also strive to extend the international appeal and quality of Lake Windermere as 

a visitor destination by supporting a range of events at Ferry Nab and around the 

lake. We also aim to provide education and training to local and regional 

organisations. The Warden and Ranger services also strive to provide support to 

other agencies and build on strong partnerships.  

 

 

4.1 Promotion of services 

 

The customer information screen has been a useful source of public information since 

installation in the reception area of Ferry Nab’s offices. Updated information from SLDC 

and LDNPA regarding lake services and safety are included, along with information on 

invasive species from the Environment Agency. Safety information is also available on 

the Lake District National Park website and in free leaflets and posters at Ferry Nab. 

There are four water safety videos online which promote carbon detectors, kill cords, life 

jackets and swimming visibility devices. Both services use social media to promote safety 

and business messages to customers.  

The Windermere Lake User guide has continued to be printed for the 2019 season and 

electronic copies are available on the LDNPA website. Paper copies of the guide were 

distributed to key public information sites around the lake. These guides show where 

users can access the lake and promote important safety messages. Windermere Lake 

Byelaw booklets are available for lake users at Ferry Nab and on the LDNPA website. 

Laminated chart maps can also be purchased which provide information about the lake, 

including the location of public jetties. 125 chart maps were sold during the reporting 

period. 

 

4.2 Education and formal training courses  

 

Ferry Nab continues to hold the status as a Royal Yachting Association (RYA) training 

centre, providing certified courses to official bodies and other authorities. During the 2018 

to 2019 season the Lake Wardens and Lake Rangers delivered a range of formal courses 

in the following areas of expertise; 

Royal Yachting Association National Powerboat Certificate Level 2  

 

Training and refresher courses provided to; 

 

- Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service 

- Windermere Lake Cruises 

Page 34



 

9 
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 

4.3 Water Safety Initiatives  

 

The Lake Rangers launched the 2019 Water Safety Campaign in May, with a press 

release followed by safety messages on social media raising awareness and offering 

advice about the dangers of carbon monoxide. The Rangers continued throughout 

the half term covering all aspects of carbon monoxide safety, focusing on swimmer 

safety during the Great North Swim event. Throughout the summer and school 

holidays other safety topics were covered, such as life jackets, personal flotation, use 

of kill cords, the LDNPA Swim Safe Boat Safe campaign and an additional recap on 

carbon monoxide safety. Throughout the social media campaign Rangers had the 

opportunity to answer questions and interact with @LakesRangers and 

@lakedistrictnpa twitter followers, increasing audience engagement and elaborating 

on the advice given. 

In April 2019 the Rangers worked collaboratively with the RNLI, hosting a Life Jacket 

clinic at Ullswater Yacht Club. Further clinics were held over the course of the season 

at Windermere Boat Show, Royal Windermere Yacht Club, Windermere Motor Boat 

Racing Club and Coniston Sailing Club. LDNPA volunteers were able to interact with 

a large number of lake users and pass on some invaluable water safety advice, also 

providing free checks and advice about life jackets. At Royal Windermere Yacht Club, 

for example, out of 19 jackets checked, only 2 passed all inspection tests. Volunteers 

were able to provide advice on the replacement parts needed.  

Free brightly coloured swim caps were available on both the Cheetah and Orkney 

patrol boats throughout the season and were given to swimmers who were identified 

as being at risk of collision due to visibility. Tow floats were advertised through social 

media platforms as available for purchase at Ferry Nab from the Lake Wardens. 

Other advice was also provided to swimmers and lake users about the importance 

of visibility, using a support boat and safe places to swim.  

The Lake Rangers had an excellent opportunity to promote water safety during the 

warmer part of the year, when BBC news interviewed one of the Rangers live on 

patrol in the southern basin. The risks of swimming in open water were discussed 

along with the safety precautions that can be taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



 

10 | P a g e  
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 

 

4.4 Events on Windermere  

 

 Participant at the Great North Swim 

 

Lake Windermere hosts a wide range of events with a variety of national and local 

organisations.  

Great North Swim; with approximately 10,000 participants. This year’s successful event 

took place at LDNPA’s activity centre at Brockhole, but was overseen by both the 

Rangers and Wardens to ensure participant safety.  

Swim Safe; with 1376 participants this year. This initiative is hosted by SLDC’s leisure 

partner Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) at Millerground bathing site. It saw increased 

interest in practical water safety courses for swimming in the lake especially from children 

and young people.  

Winter Series Sail Racing organised by Windermere Cruising Association with races 

between November 2018 and March 2019. 

Charity and local events; many small scale events happen on the lake through the year 

which the wardens are aware of and assist with if required. 

Supporting TV filming; in December 2018 the Lake Wardens helped to support ITV’s 

filming of popular drama ‘Deep Water’ by providing safety cover in the patrol boats and 

supporting camera work on the lake. 

 

 

Page 36



 

11 
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 

4.5 Windermere Boat and Adventure Show 

 

 

Ferry Nab Car Park during the boat show 

In 2019 the boat show had 48 vendors with 5,000 people attending over the weekend. 

The boat show has become a regular free event in May each year and showcases local 

businesses from around Lake Windermere and across Cumbria. It has increased in size 

and popularity since it began in 2016. It has been rebranded as the ‘Windermere Boat 

and Adventure Show’ to provide attractions for visitors and increase the amount of time 

visitors spend in Bowness for the event, which remains free. Local businesses directly 

benefit from the show with an opportunity to promote their products. It has also opened 

up a more competitive market in the area with two new boat dealers establishing 

themselves at Lake Windermere. 

Part of Ferry Nab Car Park was closed to allow the show to have a bigger footprint and 

ensure a safer area for it to be located, with minimal vehicle traffic. Some of the public 

jetties were also used to display boats for private vendors. During the event opening 

times the public slipway was closed to ensure public safety and reduce vehicle traffic. 

Maiden Marine Village provided support with assisted launches so that disruption for the 

public was minimal. The Lake Wardens and SLDC also publicised this prior to the show 

so that customers were aware of the limited access to the public slipway during this 

weekend.  

Page 37



 

12 | P a g e  
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 

 

The jetties at Ferry Nab during the Windermere and Adventure Boat Show in May 2019 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



 

13 
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 

 

 

5. Vibrant Communities     
 

Vibrant communities are people successfully living, working and relaxing within 

upland, valley and lakeside places where distinctive local character is maintained 

and celebrated. 

Both services work closely with the lake community to ensure that the lake is as 

safe and as welcoming as possible for all users. This includes: 

 Administration of Windermere Byelaw exemptions 

 Educational activities on water safety  

 Lake Ranger and Lake Wardens active presence on the lake. 

 Providing support, advice and guidance for outdoor recreational events. 

 

 

5.1 Windermere byelaw exemption applications 

Within the 2008 Windermere Navigation byelaws, byelaw 12 allows individuals and 

organisations to apply to the LDNPA for exemptions from the speed limits and other 

byelaws. One exemption application from Windermere Motor Boat Racing Club had already 

received approval for three race events in 2019. All three race events during the 2019 

season went ahead as planned and were closely monitored by the lake rangers. 

 

In this reporting period we also received a Windermere byelaw exemption application 

from the Coniston Record Attempts Committee to allow competitors to attempt world or 

national speed records on Windermere. In 2019 the national governing body for power 

boating changed from the Royal Yachting Association (RYA) to the British Power Boat 

Association (BPBA). The current byelaw on Coniston requires the event to take place 

specifically under the rules of the RYA and therefore the event is unable to take place 

until the byelaw can be changed. For this reason and for 2019 only the Coniston Record 

Attempts Committee made an application to run the records week on Windermere. This 

event was approved for the weekend of 9 and 10 November 2019. As part of the approval 

several conditions were set for the applicant to abide by.   

 

5.2 Incidents on the lake  

The Wardens have attended 219 incidents during the reporting period, supported by the 

Lake Rangers in some cases. What is classed as an incident on the lake covers a very 

diverse range of occurrences, from rescue situations to a boater who has run out of fuel. 

Most common incidents are observed during routine boat patrols where remedial action 

is taken; the relevant person or organisation is notified of any action taken or issues 

which need attention.  

 

 

Page 39



 

14 | P a g e  
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 

 

Table 5.2a Incident Analysis for October 2018– September 2019; 

Incident Category 
Sports 

Yachts 
Motor Jet Canoes/ 

Misc 
Boats Cruisers Skis Row boat 

Fatality (lake based) 0 1 0 0 0 0 

Personal injury / illness 0 1 1 0 0 1 

Persons fallen overboard 0 0 0 0 2 0 

Persons capsized 0 3 0 1 4 0 

Persons jumped in / 
swimming 

0 0 0 0 0 1 

Boat sinking / sunk 1 8 1 0 1 0 

Collisions 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Adrift / ashore 20 53 13 0 4 1 

Damage to boat or 
property 

1 6 0 0 0 0 

Problem with mooring or 
strops 

0 27 6 0 0 0 

Broken down – not adrift 
4 1 2 0 0 0 

 

A) behaviour complaints 0 0 0 0 0 0 

B) crime/theft complaints 0 0 0 0 1 0 

C) other complaints 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Fire 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Missing persons 0 1 0 0 0 0 

Other Hazards 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Totals 26 101 24 1 12 5 

  

 

 

 

Page 40



 

15 
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

5.3 Byelaw incidents    

 

The Lake Rangers have worked hard this year to educate people on how to enjoy the 

lake safely. Whilst on patrol, Rangers have interacted with three hundred and forty three 

lake users, either giving out advice or enforcing the byelaws. They have also given out 

one hundred and twenty five warnings for navigation offences, which compares to one 

hundred and seventy six warnings for navigation offences in the same period last year.  

One hundred and forty three warnings for registration offences were issued this year, 

which compares to two hundred and fifty four offences for the same period last year. 

Thirty-four byelaw incidents were reported to court; twenty-six of these cases have been 

successfully prosecuted with penalty fines issued. A further eight cases are proceeding 

through the court system.  

A number of navigation offences successfully prosecuted through the courts used video 

evidence provided by the public. Through information provided during the boat 

registration renewals process we have explained how to report byelaw infringements to 

the Rangers. Sometimes the information supplied to the lake rangers on byelaw 

infringements is limited so we have methods to let lake users know what information we 

require. We have provided details on how to report byelaw infringements on our website 

which is promoted and made available to the public with a byelaw infringement report 

template available to download. 

 

https://www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/visiting/things-to-do/water/lake-byelaw-enforcement 

 

 

6. Spectacular Landscape, Wildlife and Cultural Heritage 
 

Lake Windermere sits within a unique landscape which is universally valued. It is 

located within an internationally recognised National Park and World Heritage Site 

in which natural and cultural resources are assets to be managed and used wisely 

for future generations. 

The Wardens and Rangers aim to assist with improving the natural environment 

in and around the Lake to ensure a healthy, diverse and high quality biodiversity 

on land and on water. Water quality and habitat management schemes are in 

operation throughout different points of the year. 

 

 

Page 41

https://www.lakedistrict.gov.uk/visiting/things-to-do/water/lake-byelaw-enforcement


 

16 | P a g e  
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

 

 Swans on the Lake 

 

6.1 Water quality and bathing waters 

The Lake Wardens have supported the Environment Agency with water testing and 

blue green algae surveys across different areas of the Lake. In November 2019, 

DEFRA reported the bathing water classifications at Fellfoot, YMCA, Millerground and 

Rayrigg Meadow as ‘excellent,’ for the sixth consecutive year. The Lake Wardens are 

responsible for maintaining signage displaying this information at each bathing site 

around Windermere. 

Cumbria bathing waters table 2018-2019 

Area Year Classification Year Classification 

Allonby 2018 Good 2019 Good 

Walney Biggar Bank 2018 Sufficient 2019 Good 

Haverigg 2018 Sufficient 2019 Sufficient 

Silecroft 2018 Excellent 2019 Excellent 

Seascale 2018 Good 2019 Good 

St Bees 2018 Excellent 2019 Excellent 

Windermere, Lakeside YMCA 2018 Excellent 2019 Excellent 

Windermere, Millerground 
Landing 

2018 Excellent 2019 Excellent 

Windermere, Rayrigg Meadow 2018 Excellent 2019 Excellent 

Windermere, Fellfoot 2018 Excellent 2019 Excellent 

 

Page 42



 

17 
 

Windermere Lake Warden and Lake Ranger Services 

6.2 Geese management  

The Lake Rangers and SLDC have supported the work of the Windermere Geese 

Management Group with non-lethal management techniques to control the numbers of 

Canada Geese on Windermere. This work involved Canada Geese egg oiling on the 

islands. The group meet annually to review data collected and to update the action 

plan.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Aboard a yacht on the lake 

 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Item No.9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

Item No.10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Progress Report
	Appendix 1 - WLAP Steering Group Meeting Minutes 17.12.19

	7 2020/21 to 2024/25 Draft Budget
	2020/21 to 2024/25 Draft Budget  - Appendix 1
	app 1d

	2020/21 to 2024/25 Draft Budget  - Appendix 2
	App 4 Revenue Pressures


	8 Windermere Lake Wardens and Rangers Annual Report 2018/19
	Windermere Lake Wardens and Rangers Annual Report 2018/19  - Appendix 1

	9 Progress Report
	Appendix 2 BA1 - WLAP Project Highlight Report- Part II
	Appendix 2 BA2 - WLAP Project Highlight Report - Part II
	Appendix 2 BA3 - WLAP Project Highlight Report - Part II
	Appendix 2 BA4 - WLAP Project Highlight Report Updated - Part II
	Appendix 2 BA6 - WLAP Project Highlight Report updated 06112019 - Part II
	Appendix 2 - WLAP - ANNEX 1 - Breakthrough Actions table - Final Draft Revised Timescale - Part II

	10 Update on commercial leases and annual encroachments
	Update on commercial leases and annual encroachments - Appendix A


